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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the arrnmnanvmn financial statements of TP Western Qdisha Distribution Limited

(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period then ended (from date of incorporation, i.e.,
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summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report as per section 134 of the Act, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Board Report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have

nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are alsoresponsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. if we conciude that a materiai uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Attention is drawn to the matters described in Note 38.05 of the financial statements,
related to non-availability of certain records and documents pertaining to business
acquired. In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the aforesaid, proper books of
account for the remaining matters as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) Attention is drawn to the matters described in Note 38.05 of the financial statements,
related to non-availability of certain records and documents pertaining to business
acquired. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
except for the possible effects arising from non-availability of records and documents as
aforesaid;
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
iMarch 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The matters related to non-availability of certain records and documents pertaining to
business acquired are as stated in paragraph (b) and (c) of our report;

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration, if any, for the period ended March 31, 2021
has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(i) Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements"” of our report of even date

O]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

w)

(vi)

(vii)

a. In our opinion, except for the matters described in Note 38.05 of the financial statements
related to unavailability of fixed assets records as at the date of acquisition of business by
the Company, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
inciuding quantitative detaiis and situation of fixed assets.

b. As explained in Note 38.05 of the financial statements, fixed assets were not physically

verified by the transferor company. Post-acquisition, the Company has framed a reqular
..............

physically verified by the management during the period, hence, we are unable to comment

on the discrepancies, if any.

c. The Company does not hold any land in its name. As regard the buildings thereon, the
Company retains the operational right over the buildings used for the purpose of carrying
out distribution business under a license granted by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory
Commission. Thus, verification of title deeds is not applicable for such buildings.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the period and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed
by us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b)
and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented
upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company being in its first year of
business operations, the requirement for the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of the Company is not applicable.
Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

a. The Company is reqgular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of excise, value added tax and duty of custom, are not applicable to the
Company.
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues were outstanding, at the period end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to employees' state insurance
and duty of custom, are not applicable to the Company.

c. According to the information and expianations given to us, the dues of service tax on
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Statute | Nature of the | INR in | Period Forum where the
dues Crores dispute is
pending
The Finance Act, | Service Tax 75.97 Financial Principal
1994 year 2014- | Commissioner,
15 to 2017- | CGST
18

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution
or bank government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management
and audit procedures performed by us, the Company has utilized the monies raised by way
of term loans for the purposes for which they were raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the
Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration, if any, has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company
and hence not commented upon.
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(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit
procedures performed by us, the Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential allotment through private placement of
shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for which
the funds were raised. Further, according to the information and explanations to us and on
an overaii examination of the baiance sheet, the Company has not made any preferentiai
allotment or private placement of fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him a
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP For Tej Raj & Pal
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of TP
Western Odisha Distribution Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TP Western
Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021, in conjunction with our audit
of financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies,
the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (“the Act").

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Because of the matter described in Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph below, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements of the
Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.




SRBC&COLLP Tej Raj & Pal

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
12 Floor, The Ruby Plot No. 1278/2256/4294
29, Senapati Bapat Marg Govinda Prasad, Bomikhal
Dadar(W), Mumbai 400 028 Behind Ekamra Film Talkies

Bhubaneswar - 751010

TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited
Page 9 of 9

Disclaimer of Opinion

According to the information and explanation given to us and as described in Note 41, the Company
has acquired power distribution business in Western Odisha from the Western Electricity Supply
Company of Odisha Limited and WESCO utility and is in the process of strengthening the existing
internal controls over financial reporting, including maintenance of sufficient and appropriate
records, over key processes considering the essentiai components of internai controis over
financial reporting stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAl (Guidance Note). Consequently, the documentation
supporting the design and operating effectiveness of key internal controls over financial reporting
.............

Guidance Note were not made available to us to enable us to determine if the Company has
established adequate internal controls over financial reporting and whether such internal controls
over financial reporting were designed and operating effectively as at March 31, 2021.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on internal controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.

Explanatory paragraph

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, the financial
statements of the Company, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the
related Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the period then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. We have
considered the disclaimer of opinion reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2021 financial statements of the Company and
this report does not affect our report dated June 7, 2021 which expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements.

ForSRBC&COLLP For Tej Raj & Pal
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ROM

| Revenue from operations
1l  Other income
II1 Total income (1+11)
1V, Expenses
Cost of power purchased and Lransmission charges
Emplayee benefits expense

Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (IV) . ]
V. Profit / (Loss) before movement in regulatory deferral
and tax : .

Add/(Less): Net movement in regulatory deferral bal
VI Profit/(loss) before tax

(2) Deferred tax et
VIII Profit/ (loss) after tax for the period (VI-VII)
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Particufar
& Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/{Loss) before tax
agiustmants for
Adjustments to reconclle profit and loss to cash “u.‘ “m'#,,ﬁ.'
Depreciation ang amartisation expense & . =
rrerest on Security Depogit $ g
Interest on Lnan

Operating profit hefore working capital changes

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Irwentories s
Trage receivables ;
Unbilled revenue
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TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1
General Information

TP Western Odisha Distribution Limited (TPWODL or the Company) is a public limited company, domiciled and incorporated in India and is
engaged in the business of distribution of electricity in Western Odisha. The Company has been incorporated on December 30, 2020 under the
Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). Pursuant to vesting order issued by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission ('OERC") dated
December 28, 2020, the Company acquired the business of distributing power in Western Orissa (‘business”) from the WESCO (Western
Electricity Supply Company of Odisha Limited & WESCO utility) with effect from January 1, 2021 (vesting date). Accordingly, the Company is a
licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution circles of Rourkela, Burla, Bhawanipatna,
Bolangir and Bargargh in the state of Odisha for a period of 25 years effective from January 1, 2021, which also marked the commencement of

commercial aperations for the Company.
The registered office of the company is located at Wesco Corporate Building Burla, Besides Burla Police Station, Burla, Sambalpur, 768017,

Odisha.
The Company is subsidiary of The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) which halds 51% equity shares and balance 43% equity shares are held
by GRIDCO Ltd.

Note 2

2.1 Statementi of compiiance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended from time to time).
Financial statements are prepared for the period from date of incorporation, viz,, December 30, 2020 to 31 March 2021, Since the
Company has been formed during the year, there is no comparative information.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation
The Ind AS Financial 5
been measured at fair value

lities which have

- certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value {Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments):
- defined benefit plan related assets and liabilities (Refer accounting policy for defined benefit plans)
Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to acquire assets at the time of
their acquisition or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation, or the amounts of cash or cash equivalents
expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
Note 3
Other significant accounting policies

Accounting policies are set out along with respective explanatory notes where it specifically relates to such transactions or balances. Other
significant accounting policies are set out below:

3.1 Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (¥), which is the functional currency of the Company. The functional currency
represents the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing cn the Balance Sheet date and exchange
gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset treated as
current when it is:
- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- held prmarily for the purpose of trading,
- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:
- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
- it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.3" Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. '
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
Except for trade receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Trade receivables are measured
at the transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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3.4

3.4.1

3.4.3

3.4.5

3.5
3.5.‘1

3.5.2

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on 2 trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention In the market place.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the

classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are met:

(i} financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

(il contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortised cost and/ or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) classification or are equity instruments held for trading or that meet certain conditions and are
designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this category, except for those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, for which the hedge accounting requirements may apply. Assets in this category are measured at
f2ir walus with gainc or losses recognized in the Statemant of Profit and Loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are
determinad by reference to active market transactions or using 2 valuation technique where no active market exists.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

(i) on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent
(iif) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

dende on these investmants in equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the Company’s right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.
Dividends recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss are included in the ‘Other income’ line item,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cashflows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount autstanding.

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if
the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative
gain or loss is not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.

Impairment of financial asset

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
Lrade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial osset not designated as at FUTPL.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses using the simplified approach permitted under Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments".

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss
is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted
effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected
life of that financial instrument.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Derecoanition of financial asset
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects. # :
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3.5.3 Financial liability

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3.5.3.1 Financial liabilities subseq tly ed at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant reporting period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate} a shorter peried, to the net carrying amaunt on initial
recognition.

3.5.3.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

3.8

The Company dereccgnises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
criginal financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principai or the most advantagecus market must be accessibie Dy the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved far valuation of significant asscts, such as properties and other asscts/ liabilities acquired as part of
business combination.

Lease Accounting

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is or contains a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At inception or on
reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates consideration in the contract to each lease
companent on the basis of their relative standalone price.

As a Lessee

Right-of-use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses , and adjusted for any remeasurement of |lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to dismantle. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term, In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company generally uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the discount rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in index or
rate. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term leases and leases of low value of assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Dividend

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a
liability on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of Directors.
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3.9

311

3.12

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will
be complied with. Where the grant relates to a specified asset, it is recognized as deferred income, and amortized over the expected
useful life of the asset. Other grants relating to revenue are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the related expense is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Busi binations and goodwill

Business combinations, except thase under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are racognised at their acquisition date fair values.
For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their
acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the
following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

- Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

- Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of
the acquicition are accounted in accordance with Tnd AS 12,

- When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment stili resuits in an excess of the
fair value of net assets acquired over the agaregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equity as
capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether ather assets or liabllities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting peried in which the combination oceurs, the
Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that
date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

Changes in Ind AS and related pronouncements effective at a future date
Amendment in Schedule III to Companies Act 2013:

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies Act,
2013, The amendments revise Division I, II and III of Schedule 111 and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to
Division II which relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 (as amended) are:

Balance Sheet:

« Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished as current or non-current.

« Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting peried.

« Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

« Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset under
development.

« If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions,

then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

« Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements,

compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, loans and advances
to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.

Statement of profit and loss:

« Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual currency specified
under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of the financial statements.

The amendments are extensive and the Companv will evaluate the same to aive effect to them as reauired bv law,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are nct readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
assoclated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying tions are revi d on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

The areas invelving critical estimates or judgements are:

Estimation of reaulatorv deferral account balances.

Estimation of unbilled revenue

Estimation of defined benefit obliaation

Estimation of current tax and deferred tax expense

Estimation of provision and contingent liabilitv "

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated. They are based on industrial experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(S LS R
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Note 4
4.01

Property, plant and equipment :

Accounting Policy :

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
purchase price (net of trade discount and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Ind AS 23. Capital work in progress is stated at
cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recagnised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate assets are derecoanised when replaced.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when an asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation on Property, piant and equipment in respect of eieciricily business of the Company covere
Companies Act, 2013, has been provided on the straight-line method at the rates specified in vesting order and tarif
regulatory commission

+ D 5
te o
f

regulatio

=]
a

otified by

Estimated useful lives of the Requlated assets are as follows:

Type of asset Useful lives Useful lives (New
(Assets assets acquired
transferred on | post acquisition)
acauisition)
Buildings 50 Years 27 Years
Plant & Machinery and transmission lines & cable network (excluding IT 25 Years 18 Years
Plant and equipment (IT Equipments) = 6 Years
Plant and equipment (Batteries) G S Years
Furniture and fixtures 20 Years 15 Years
Office equipment 10 Years 15 Years
Motor cars 7 Years 15 Years

Based on the vesting order/ tariff regulations, the residual value of the assets is considered at 5% of the Original Cost. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipments is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
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NOTE 4.02 Property, plant and equipment :

¥ inCioies

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Block
As at Additions As at As at As at As at
Particulars 01.01,2021 01.01.2021 for the
(Refer note No 4.03) 31.03.2021 (Refer note No 4.03) period 31.03.2021 31.03.2021

(a) Buildings 10.51 - 18,51 - 006 0.06 10.45

Plant and Machinery, Transmission lines
(b) and cable netwark 1,253.95 " 1,253.99 = 16,18 16.18 1,237.81
(c) Vehicles o0.08 = 0.08 st 0.01 0.01 0.07
(d) Furniture and fixtures 0.36 0.02 0.38 - 0.02 0.02 0.36
le) Office equipment 2.34 0.26 2.60 - 0.13 0.13 2.47

Total 1,267.27 0.28 1,267.55 - 16.40 16.40 1,251.16

NOTE 4.03
ts acquires WESCO
As at 01.01.2021
i Accumulated

particilsrd Gross Block Depreciation

Buildinas 15.97 5.46

plant & Machinery and transmission lines & 1,868.57 614,57

cable network

Matar Vehicles 0.48 0.41

Furniture & Fixtures 2.00 1.64

Office Equipr 6.95 4.61

Total 1,803.97 62669

NOTE 4.04

The Company daes not own any land in its name. The Company retains operational rights
of vesting order, land has been given on lease to the Company far a | consi
exemption for the said lease in accordance with Ind AS 116 - "Leases’. In any case, right of use asset and

NOTE 4.05
Also refer note no. 38.02 of business combination and note no 39 assets created with Government Fund and used by WESCO/TPWODL
NOTE 5
¥ As At ar Capitalized As At
Parti £
ichiars 01.01.2021 additions /Disposal 31.03.2021
Capital Work in Progress (majorly pertains to Plant &
Machinery and transm lines & cable network) 151.65 - = 151.65
Total 151.65 - - 151.65

over the land used for the purpose of carrying out distribution business under a license granted by OERC. As per terms
jon of ¥ 1 per year, till the expiry of power distribution license, Company has applied low value assets recognition
lease liability computed based on agreed lzase rent is not significant,
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A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company:
Note 6
Other financial assets - non current

(Unsecured and considered good, at amortised cost)

Advances to Staff
Deposits with banks

Note 7
Deferred tax assets/ liabilities (Net) (refer note no 31)
Taxable temporary differences
Deferred Tax Asset

Note 8
Non-current tax assets

(a) Non Current tax assets
Advance income tax/ tax deducted at source (net of provision)

Note 9
Other non-current assets

(Unsecured and considered good)

(a) Capital advances
{b) Security Deposit-to various authorities
(c) Others

Note 10
Inventories

Accounting policy

As at
31.03.2021
Z in Crore

7.11
263.74
270.85

As at
_31.03.2021
Z in Crore

0.34
0.34

As at
31.03.2021
Z in Crore

0.45
0.45

As at
_31.03.2021
Z in Crore

0.11
3.73
1.37
5.21

10.1 Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisahle value. Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale. Cost of inventory includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories ta their present
location and condition. Unserviceable/damaged stores and spares are identified and written down based on technical evaluation.

(a) Stores and spares (At lower of cost and net realisable value)
Note 11

Trade receivables
(At amortised cost)

(a) (i) Considered good - unsecured
(ii) Credit impaired

Less: Allewance for doubtful trade debt

Note: 1. The Company*holds security deposits from consumers amounting to 7 818.81 Crore.

As at
31.03.2021
Z in Crore
22.18
22.18

As at

31.03.2021
Z in Crore

66.19
8.53

74.71

(8.53})
66.19

BHUB

b

NESIAR
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Note 12
Cash and bank balances

Accounting policy

12,1

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months

or less, which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include balances with banks which

are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

12.2 Cash and cash equivalents
(a) Balances with banks - in current accounts
(b) Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
(c) Cash on hand

(d) Cheques on hand

12.3 Bank balances other than 12.2 above
(i)  Deposits with banks with ariginal maturity more than 3 months upto 12 months

As at
_31.03.2021
2 in Crore

79.62
111.51
8.56
12.14
211.85

As at
31.03.2021
¥ in Crore

811.81
811.81

Note: Out of the above bank balance lien on fixed deposits is # 397,21 Crare for security against short-term loan taken By the Company

(refer note 20).

12.4  Reconciliation of Liabilities from Financing Activities
Particulars : As at i Cash Flows Non=cash As at March
2021\'* " |"Proceeds Payment Adjustments 31, 2021
Security deposits from electricity consumers B807.09 11.72 - - 818.81
Contribution for capital works B882.88 1.19 e (11.25) 872.82
Deposit Work 53.37 2.01 3 - 55.38
Subsidies towards cost of capital assets 137.38 - (1.27) - 136.11
Current borrowings 336.49 (195.23) 141.26
Total 2,217.21 14.91 (196.50) (11.25) 2,024.37
* Date of acquisition from WESCO
Note 13 As at
Other financial assets - current 31.03.2021
(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated, at amortised cost) Z in Crore
(a) Income accrued but not due on short term deposit with banks 27.08
(b) Other Receivable b2
32.30
Note 14 As at
Other current assets 31.03.2021
Unsecured and considered good % in Crore
{a) Others Advance 0.52
0.53

o

HUBANES AR J
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As at
31.03.2021
% in Crore
Note 15
Share capital
Authorised
100,00,00,000 Nos equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,000.00

—___1,000.00_

Issued, subscribed and paid up

30,00,00,000 Nos equity shares of # 10/- each (fully paid up) 300.00
Total issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 300.00
a. Reconciliation of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
As at
_31.03.2021

No of Shares

Equity shares

Issued during the period 300,000,000
Outstanding at the end of the period 300,000,000

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares including restrictions on the distribution of
dividends and the repayment of capital:
Equity Shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share held. The share holders are entitled to dividend declared on
Proportionate basis. On liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

c. Details of share holders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid As at 31st March 2021
Name of the Shareholder No of Shares % Holding
A. The Tata Power Company Ltd (Holding company) 153,000,000 51%
B. GRIDCO Ltd (Company having significant influence) 147,000,000 45%
Total 300,000,000 100%
As at
31.03.2021
¥ in Crore
Note 16
Other equity
16.1 Retained earnings
(2) Additions during the period (1.02)
(b} Closing balance (1.02)

(1.02!

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits of the Company earned till date net of appropriations.
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Note 17
Provisions

17.01

17.02

17.03

Accounting Policy
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Comparny will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material}.

.
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions with charge to statement of profit and loss.
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefits plans

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurements,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income.

n I non- n
Defined contribution plans

i) Provident Fund
The company makes contributions towards Pravident Fund which is a defined contribution plan for gualifying employees. The
company's eantrihntion to the Employees Provident Fund is deposited by the company under the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952 which is recognized by the Income Tax Authorities. The provident Fund is operated by Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, the Company Is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits, The Company has recognised a total of ¥ 1.46 crores as contribution towards
provident fund in the statement of orofit or loss.

Defined Benefits plans

Erstwhile WESCO Emplovees

i) Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is primarily governed by the Odisha Civil Services (Pension)
Rules 1992. Employees who are In continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefits
provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the retirement date. The gratuity plan is funded plan. The fund
has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointed by the Company. The Trustees are responsible for the administration
of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are deployed in
recognised insurer managed funds in India.

ii} Pension
The Company has a defined benefit pension plan. The pension plan is primarily governed by the Odisha Civil Services {Pension)
Rules 1952, Employees who had joined WESCO on or before 31st December 2004 are eligible for pension. The level of benefits
provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the retirement date. The pension plan is funded plan. The fund
has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointed by the Company. The Trustees are responsible for the administration
of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are deployed in
recoanised insurer manaaed funds in India.
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Other than Erstwhile WESCO Emplovees (Unfunded)

i) Gratuity
The Company operates a gratulty plan covering qualifying employees. The benefit payable is calculated as per the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of cantinuous service and once vested it is payable to employees
on retirement or on termination of employment. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees are based on the employee’s service
and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. The employees do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these
benefits are met by the Company. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting.

ii) Pension
The company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-determined sum as pension after completing vesting period.

iii} Post Employment Medical Benefit
The company provides certain post employment health care benefits to superannuated employees at some of its locations. In terms
of the plan, the retired employees can avail free medical check-up and medicines at companies' facilities.

iv) Ex-Gratia Death Benefits i
The company has a defined benefit plan granting ex-gratia in case of death during service. The benefit consists of a pre-determined
Jumpsum amount along with a surn determined based on last drawn basic salary per month and the length of service.

v) Retirement Gift
The company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-determined sum as retirement gift on superannuation of an employee.

As at
Provision for Emplovee Benefits ___31.03.2021
% in Crore
Non-Current
Gratuitv 6.31
Pension Fund 34.37
Leave Encashment 1.87
Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB) 0.91
Other Defined Benefit Plan 2.27
45.72
Current
Gratuity 0.34
Pension Fund 3.85
Leave Encashment 0.54
Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB) 0.00
Other Defined Benefit Plan 0.32
————— 0

17.04 Note

17.05

17.06

WESCO was operating the electricity distribution business (Business) in Western Odisha until December 31, 2020. The Company has
acquired the electricity distribution business of WESCO with effect from January 1, 2021. As a part of Business transfer, all the employees
of the undertaking were transferred to the Company effective January 1, 2021 on a continuity of service condition. Certain employees of
WESCO transfarred to the Company are entitled ta pensian and gratuity plan which are managed by separate trusts who are responsible
for the disbursement of pension and aratuity to the beneficiaries. As on the date of acquisition, the plan liabilities exceed plan assets. The
Vesting Order has clarified that opening liabilities of the trusts are not transferred to the Company and they will continue to be trusts’
obligation The vesting order prescribes the mechanism for funding of such plan liabilities based on request from the respective employee
henefit trusts whereby the Company is required to fund the shortfall and is entitled to simultaneously recover the amounts from
consumers. The Company has assessed that post transfer of business, these plans as defined benefit plans and has accordingly recognized
only incremental liability it in the financial statements. As the Company acts as an intermediary on behalf of the trusts to collect the
amounts from the consumers, the amount recoverable from consumers for the pre-acquisition period are netted off with revenue from
operations. The amount paid during the period which is netted off with revenue from operations is Rs.36.08 crores details of which are
given below.

Particulars Pension Gratuity Leave Total

Amount paid during the Period 29.60 2.39 4.09 36.08

Risk associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risk. These risk are interest rate risk, demographic risk and salary escalation risk.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; howewver, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability s calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

| Escalation ri
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants, As such, an
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The following tables set out the funded status of gratuity plan and amount recognized in the Company's financial statements as at 31st
March 2021,The wvaluation has been carried out using the " Project Unit Credit Method " as per Ind AS 19 " Employee Benefits" to
determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and related current service cost,
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C.

Present Value of obliaations

As at
31.03.2021
Particulars Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit (Funded)
[ 1
a.|Present Value of obligations as at January 1, 2021 = 157.47 85.60 1342.94
as per Actuarial Valuation (including obligation not
transferred to the Company) (Refer note 17.04)
b.|Interest Cost = 2.71 1.45 23.07
c.|Current Service Cost - 2.32 1.24 8.56
d.|Past Service Cost £ 2,75 = o
e.|Acauisition (Credit)/Cost 3.43 1.3 = =
f. |Actuarial loss / (aain}-Demodraphic - 0.36 - ]
q.|Actuarial less / {gain)-Financial - (4.44) {2.04) (3.87)
h.|Actuarial loss / (gain}-Experience 2.30 0.56 1.08 16.82
i. |Benefits Paid - (3.88) (5.09) (38.00%
j. |Present value of obligation at the end of the period 5.73 158.88 82.24 1,349.52
(including  obligation not transferred to the
Co te 17.04)
Fair value of plan assets
As at
31.03.2021
Particulars Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit (Funded)
{Unfunded)
a.|Fair value of plan asset as at January 1, 2021 - 0.66 43.90 212,358
(including plan assets not transferred to the
Company) (Refer note 17.04)
b.|Acquisition (Credit)/Cost = =
c. |Estimated return on plan asset H 0.01 0.76 3,70
d.|Employer contribution - - 2.42 30.43
e.|Benefits Paid - - (5.09) (38.00)
f. |Excess of actual over estimated return = 0.00 0.02 1.83
q.|Others - -
h.|Fair value of plan asset at the end of the period - 0.67 42.01 210.30
(including plan assets not transferred to the
Company) (Refer note 17.04)
Amount to be recoanized in the balance sheet
As at
31.03.2021
Particulars Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit {Funded)
{(Unfunded)
1. Present Value of cbligations as at the end of the 5.73 158.88 82.24 1,349.52
period as per Actuarial Valuation (including obligation
not transferred to the Company)
2. Fair value of Assets at the end of the period = 0.67 42.01 210.30
{incduding plan assets not transferred to the Company)
3. Net liability (before reducing liability not transferred 5.73 158.21 40.23 1,139.21
to Company) (refer note 17.04)
4. Liability not transferred to the Company as per - 152.29 39.32 1,101.00
vesting order
5. Net Liability recognized in balance sheet 5.73 5.91 0.52 38.22
Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars 31.3;;;21
Gratuity (Un Other Defined Gratuity Pension (Funded)
L Funded) Benefit (Funded)
[ )
1. Current Service Cost - 2,32 1.24 8.56
2. Past Service Cost - 2.75 p
3. Interest Cost - 2.70 0.68 19.37
4, Expected return on Plan Assets C. =
5. Immediate Recognition of (Gains)/ Losses - Other - 0.36
Lona Term Benefits
6. Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the period - (3.88)
7. Expenses recognized in statement of Profit & Loss - 4,25 1.92 27.93
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qa.

h.

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (remeasurements)

As at
31.03.2021
Particulars Gratuity (Un | Other Defined Gratuity Pension (Funded)
Funded) Benefit (Funded)
(Unfunded)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arisina from: -
- changes in demographic assumptions 2
- changes in financial assumptions - - (2.04) (5.70)
- experience adjustments 1.45 2 1.08 16.82
Total 1.45 - (0.96) 1112
Principal assumptions
2 As at
i 31.03.2021
Particulars
; Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) (funded)
1. Discount rate 6,60% 6.97%
2. Salary escalation
-Manaaement 7% 6%
-Non Management 5% 6%
Indian Assured|100 %  Indian
Lives Martality] Assured Lives|
3. Mortality rate
¥ (2006-08) Ult Mortality (2012 -
14)
Cateqory wise plan assets
As at As at
. March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2021
Particulars Gratuity Pension
(Funded) (Funded)
Cash & Cash Equivalents 7.87% 2.94%
State Government Securities 41.86% 43.27%
Government of India Assets 14.47% 6.44%
Corporate Bonds 32.41% 33.05%
Other 3.39% 14.30%]
Total 100.00% 100.00%]

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions accurring at the
end of the reporting period, while holding all ulher assumptions constant.

As at
March 31, 2021
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit liability Gratuity Other Defined Gratuity Pension (Funded)
(Unfunded) Benefit (Funded)
(Unfunded)
Impact on discount rate for 0.5% decrease in 0.27 9.93 4.21 45.19
defined benefit obligation
Impact on discount rate for 0.5% increase in defined {0.25) (9.04) (3.85) (42.19)
benefit abligation
Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% decrease (0.25) {9.05) (2.99) (26.94)
in_defined benefit obligation
Impact on salary escalation rate for 0.5% Increase 0.27 9.86 2.98 26.36
in defined bey igation

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated
using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the
defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The weighted average duration of the unfunded gratuity plan is 7.4 years,

Effect of Plan on Company's future cash flows

As at
March 31, 2021 : .
Expected Future cashflows Gratuity Other Defined Gratuity Pension
(Unfunded) Benefit (Funded)* (Funded)*
(Unfunded)
Year-1 0.22 16.16 11.54 137.59
Year-2 0.18 13.67 10.47 115.61
Year-3 0.21 11.49 8.48 113.49
Year-4 0.22 9.12 6.41 112,30
Year-5 0.52 6.99 4,37 109.23
Year 6- 10 5.47 34.81 19.15 496.88

*including payment for liabilities not transferred to the Company (refer note 17.04)
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As at
_31.03.2021
Z in Crore
Note 18
Consumer Contribution towards Capital Assets-Non Current (At Cost less amortisation)
Consumer Contribution Towards Cost of Capital Assets 872.82
) 872.82
vement i ntributio f i
Opening 882.88
Add: Additions during the period 1.19
Less: Transfer to statement of profit & loss [11.25)
Closing Balance 872.82
As at
_31.03.2021
Z in Crore
Note 19
Other non current liabilities
Deposit from supplier/vendor 19.49
Consumers' deposits for works 55.38
Subsidies towards cost of capital asset 136.11
210.98

Note: As part of business combination, certain grants/ subsidies have been transferred to the Company which can be used only
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the concerned scheme, Pending clarity on the terms and conditions of the
Scheme, the Company has not used and continues to reflect grant/ subsidy as liability.

Note 20
Short-term borrowings
(At amortized cost) As at
(a) LOANS REPAYABLE ON DEMAND 31.03.2021
Z in Crore
20.1 Secured - at amortised cost
From Banks
(a8) Cash credit 141.26
Total short-term borrowings 141.26
NOTES:

Secured credit facilities
The Company has availed secured fund based cash credit limits of ¥ 359 Crore from Union Bank of India.These facilities

are secured against first charge on fixed deposits with bank of face value of ¥ 397.21 crores. Interest range varies from
4% to 7%.

Note 21 As at
Trade payables (at amortised cost) 31.03.2021
Z in Crore
Dues to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises {MSME) =
Dues Other-than MSME Creditors 250.64
290.64

WESCO was not following any processes for identification of vendors as micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME)
under the MSMED Act,2006 . The Company is in the process of identification of MSME vendors and ensuring necessary
compliance with the MSMED Act,2006. (Also, refer note 34,03)

Note 22 As at

Other financial liabilities - current 31.03.2021

{At amaortised cost) Z in Crore
(a) Payable to employees : 49.76
(b) Security deposit from consumer 818.81
{c) Deposit from others 6.91
(d) Outstanding for supply for capital material 15.48
{e) Outstanding expenses 41.32
(f) Interest payable on consumer security deposits 35.78
(g) Payable to residuary company (Refer note no 40) 193.39

1,161.45
Note: The security deposits from electricity consumers carry interest at 4.25% p.a. and is adjusted against power bill of the

respective customers as per tariff regulations. The amount is refundable on surrender of electricity connection by the consumer,

Note 23
Other current liabilities

(a) Statutory dues 40.16
(b} Income received in advance ’ 0.11
(c) Others 0.06

40.34

BHUBANESIAR
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Note 24
Regulatory Deferral Account

The Company determines revenue gaps (l.e. surplus/shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in respect of its regulated
operations in accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 114 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts” read with the Guidance Note on Rate
Regulated Activities issued by the ICAI arid based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations/Tariff Orders
notified by the Electricity Regulator and the actual or expected actions of the regulator under the applicable regulatory framework.
Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue gaps are made in the revenue of the respective year for the amounts which are
reasonably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists in such determination. These adjustments/accruals representing
revenue gaps are carried forward as Regulatory deferral accounts debit/credit balances (Regulatory Assets/Regulatory Liabilities) as
the case may be in the financial statements, which would be recovered/refunded through future billing based on future tariff
determination by the regulator in accordance with the electricity regulations.

In the regulated operations of the Company where tariff recovered from consumers is determined on cost plus return on equity, the
Income tax cost is pass through cost and accordingly the Company recognises Deferred tax recoverable/payable as Regulatory Asset/
Liability against any Deferred tax expense/ income.

The Company presents separate line items in the balance sheet for:

i. the total of all regulatory deferral account debit balances and related deferred tax balances; and

il. the total of all regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deferred tax balances.

A separate line item is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the net movement in regulatory deferral account.

As at
31.03.2021
T crore
Regulatory Deferral Account - Liability - Current
Regulatory Assets 2
Regulatory Liability (61.43)
Net Regulatory Assets /(Liabilities) (61.43)

Rate Requlated Activities

(i) As per the Ind AS-114 'Regulatory Deferral Accounts', the business of electricity distribution is a Rate Regulated activity
wherein OERC, the regulator determines Tariff to be charged from consumers based on prevailing regulations in place.

The Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply
Tariff) Regulations,2014, is applicable, These regulations require OERC to determine tariff in a manner wherein the Company
can recover its fixed and variable costs including assured rate of return on approved equity base, from its consumers. The
Company determines the Revenue, Regulatory Assets and Liabilities as per the terms and conditions specified in these
Requlations and Vesting Order

As per the vesting order, the ATAC loss trajectory which can be passed on to customers is fixed for the first ten years. Any
gain/ loss arising due to lower/ higher AT&C losses vis-a-vis fixed trajectory belongs to the Company and is not passed on to
the customer. The Company determines the amount of such gain/ loss based on basis power purchase cost only and treats all
ather expenses including operation and maintenance expenses, employee cost, finance cost and tax expense as pass through ta
the ronsumers as per prevailing regulations and tariff orders while determining 'Regulatory Deferral Account Balance.'

Reconciliation of Regulatory Assets/Liabilities of distribution business as per Rate Regulated Activities is as follows:
Period from
December 30, 2020 to
March 31, 2021

¥ crore
(iy  Power Purchase Cost 675.38
(ii} Other expenses as per the terms of Tariff Regulations including ROE 102.75
(iiiy Collected durina the period as per approved Tariff (851.17)
Regulatory Income/(Expenses) recognised in P&L {I + 1i + iii ) (A} (73.04)
Requlatory Income/{ Expenses) recoanised in OCI (B) 11.61
(61.43)

Closing Regulatory Assets (net of Liabilities) (A+B)
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Note 25
Revenue recognition

Accounting policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
There is no significant judgement involved while evaluating the timing as to when customers obtain control of promised goods
and services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified In a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

25.1 Sale of power
Revenue from the supply of power is recognised net of any trade discounts, cash rebates, etc. when the power is
supplied and units of electricity are delivered as it best depicts the value to the customer and complete satisfaction
of performance obligation. Revenue from such contracts is recognized over time for each unit of electricity delivered
at the pre-determined rate.

Revenue from power supply is accounted for an the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues
accrued up to the end of the reporting period. Revenue from power supply is recognised net of the applicable taxes
which the Company collects from the customer on behalf of the government/state authorities.

The Company, as per the prevalent Regulations (referred as "Tariff Regulations") for distribution business, is
required to recover its Annual Revenue Requirement (ARR) comprising of expenditure on account of power purchase
costs, operations and maintenance expenses, financing cost, as per the sald Tariff Regulations and an assured return
on equity . As per the said Tariff Regulations, the Company determines the ARR and any excess/shortfall in recovery
of ARR during the year is accounted for in "Regulatory Deferral Account Balance",

Revenue in respect of invoice raised for dishonest abstraction of power is recognized when the certainty of its
collection is prabable i.e. as and when recovered.

25.2  Contribution for capital works
Consumer's contribution towards cost of capital assets Is treated as capital receipt and credited in liabilities until
transferred to a separate account on commissioning of the assets and installation of connection respectively. An
amount equivalent to the depreciation charge for the year on such assets is appropriated from this account as
income to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

25.3 Incentive on past arrears collection
As per terms of OERC vesting order, the Company is eligible for incentive on past area collections pertaining to
period prior ta March 31, 2020. Revenue in respect of incentive is recognized as percentage of actual realization of
pass arrears.

Period from
December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021

Z in Crore
25.4 Revenue from operations
25.4.1 Revenue from sale of power

{a)  Sale of power 887.25
Less: rebate to consumers 4.92
Less: Pre acquisition period employee liabilities (refer note 17.04) 36.08
846.25

25.4.2 Other operating revenue
(a)  Amortisation of consumer contribution 1.5
(b) Recovery of meter Rent 8.71
(c) Over drawal Payment recovered 1.28
(d) Reliability Charges 1.89
{e) Incentives on Arrears Collection 10.81
(f) Supervision Charges 7.48
{a) Miscellaneous operating income 5.22
- 46.64
Revenue from operations k 892.89

Disaggregation of revenue

The Company deals in a single type of product i.e. power which is sold directly to consumers, consideration in
respect of which is based on energy supplied . Thus further disclosure in respect of disaggregation of revenue is not
required.
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25.6 Contract Balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts
with customers
ri
Particulars December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021
Contract liabilities
Advance from consumers 0,11
Total contract liabilities 0.11
Receivables
Trade receivables 74.71
Unbilled revenue for passaae of time 304.17
Less : Allowances for doubtful debts * (8.53)
Net receivables 387.41
Contract assets
Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, Contract
assets are transferred to receivables when the rights become uncaonditional.
Contract Liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recoghized when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract including advance received from customer.
25.7 Transaction Price - Remainina Performance Obliaation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be
recognized as at the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize
these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed
the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenue recognized corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to date. There are no remaining
performance obliaations outstandina as of March 31, 2021.
Note 26 Other income
Accounting Policy
- Interest income
Interest income fram a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recegnition.
- Delayed Payment Charges (DPC)
DPC is charged at the rate prescribed by the Tariff Regulations on the outstanding balance. Revenue in respect of
DPC and interest on DPC leviable as per the Tariff Regulations are recognized on actual realisation or accrued
based an an assessment of certainty of realization supported by an acknowledgement from customers.
Period from
December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021
¥ in Crore
(a) Interest income 12.37
(b)  Delayed payment surcharge 15.74
{c) Other income 0.95
29.06
Note 27
Period from
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges December 30, 2020
f to March 31, 2021
i ¥ crore
(a) Power purchase cost 649.37
Transmission charaes 48.79
SLDC charaes 0.30
Less: rebate on power purchased and transmission charaes 6.42
692.06
Note 28

Employee benefits expense

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Period from
December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021

¥ in Crore
Salaries, wages and bonus i 44.49
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 17.06) 31.90
Staff welfare expenses 1.29
Terminal benefit expenses 247
79.85
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Note 29

Finance costs

Period from
December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021

¥ in Crore
(a) Interest on consumer security deposits carried at amortised cost 8.00
(b) Interest on Cash Credit carrled at amortised cost - banks and financial institutions 2.55
10.94
Period from
December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021
¥ in Crore
Note 30
Other expenses
(a) Rent 0.50
(b} Repairs and maintenance:
(i} Building 0.16
(i} Plant and equipment 1,92
(iii) Lines, Cables, Netwark 3.59
(iv) Vehicles 0.00
(v) Furniture & Fixtures 0.01
(vi) Office Equipment 0.07
{c) Consultancy Fees 1.83
(d}) Legal Charges 0.02
(e) Advertisement & Marketing Expenses 0.10
(f) Electricity Consumption Expenses i 1.20
(g) Telephone Expenses 0.28
(h) Insurance Premium 0.62
(i) Travelling Expenses 3.43
{1 Office Expenses 0.25
(k) Allowance for doubtful debts 8.53
m Other Administrative Expenses 28.45
(m) Miscellaneous expenses 0.08
Total other expenses 51.03
30.1 Auditors remuneration
Cansultancy fees include auditor's remuneration as follows:
Period from
Particulars December 30, 2020
__to March 31, 2021
% in Crore
Audit fee (including Goods and Services Tax) 0.31
0.31
30.2 Corporate social responsibility
Section 135 (5) of the Act, inter alia, provides that the Company shall spend, in every financial year, at least two percent of the
average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years or where the Company has not
completed the period of three financial years since its incorporation, during such immediately preceding financial years, in
pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. As the company has completed its first financial year on 31st March 2021,
provisions under Section 135 (5) shall be applicable to the Company effective from FY 2021-22.
30.3  Short term leases
The Company has applied shor{ term lease exemption for above rental of land, buildings, plant and equipment, etc in accordance
with Ind AS 116 - 'Leases’
Note 31 Tax expenses
Accounting policy
. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
F1.A Current tax

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Current income tax relating to items recognized out side statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statement of profit and
loss (either in ather comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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31.2

31.3

31.4

HiE

Note 32

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financials
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temparary
differences can be utilised, Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled ar the asset realised, based on tax rates {(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income tax else vied by the same taxation authority and the
relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the losses can be utilised, Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that

can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Tax expense/(income) : Period from
December 30, 2020 to

March 31, 2021

Current tax
In respect of the current period 5

Deferred tax
In respect of the current period {0.34)

Total i e tax /(ir ) recognised in the current period (0.34)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accountina profit multiplied by India's tax rate :

Profit from continuina operations before income tax expense (1.36)

Tax Expenses /{Income) at the Indian tax rate of 25.17% (0.34)

Income tax expense
The Company has made provision for income tax at the rate of 25.17% ( Tax rate 22% Plus Surcharge 10% Plus cess 4% on tax &
surcharge ) in accordance with normal provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 for the period ended 31 March, 2021.

Defe Tax Asset/ (Liability)
Deferred tax asset/(liability) on account of : Recognised in Closing
the Statement
of Profit & Loss

Property plant and equipment (2.56) {2.56)

Provision for doubtful debts 2.15 2.15
in losses and unabsorb reciation 0.76 0.76

Total 0.34 0.34

Other comprehensive income/(expenses)

Period from
December 30, 2020
to March 31, 2021

% crore
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (11.61)
Net Mavement in requlatory deferral balances 11.61

Post-acquisition of business, the Company has decided to treat pension and gratuity benefits payable to erstwhile WESCO employees
as defined benefit plan under Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits. Consequently, the cost and liability of providing such benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method (PUCM). Among other matters, the application of PUCM results in recognition of
remeasurement gain/ loss, comprising items such as actuarial gains and losses and effect of the asset ceiling, in the Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI). The amount of remeasurement gain/ loss fluctuates period on period based on changes in actuarial
assumptions including discount rate and mortality rate, 2 ;

To ensure offsetting impact in the OCI and the Balance Sheet, the Company recognises equivalent amount as Regulatory Deferral
Account - Income/ expense in the OCI. The amount of Regulatory Deferral Account - Income/ expense recognised in the OCI in this
manner fluctuates in line with and in opposite direction to the Remeasurement gain/ loss. Based on the Vesting Order, the Company
will be allowed to include and recover this amount as revenue from customers only when the amount is paid to the trust for onward
payment to employees,
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As At
Note 33 31.03.2021
Commitments: ¥ crare
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for. 39.14
Total 39.14

Note 34
Contingent liabilities*

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise are disclosed as contingent liability and not
provided for. Such liability is not disclosed if the possibility of outflow of resources is remaote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed only when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

As At
Particular 31.03.2021
¥ crore
34.01 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
(i) Leaal cases filed by consumers, employees and others under litiaation 46.30
34.02 Indirect taxation matters relating to sales tax, service tax, GST demand for fy 2014-15 to June 2017 including Interest 78.93

till 31st mar 21 . where demand is under contest before judicial/appellate authorities CESTAT, Kolkatta and deposited Rs
2.96 Cr @7.5% of principal demand of Rs 39.41 Cr

*No provision is considered necessary since the Company expects favorable decisions.

34,03 Before acquisition, WESCO Utility was not identifying and tracking dues payable to MSME vendors separately. Consequently, it was not
tracking whether timely payments are being made to such vendors and/ or interest/ penalty, if any, payable for delay in making payment.
Post acquisition, the Company has initiated a process and identified MSME vendors based on confirmations received. In the absence of
adequate data, the Company is unable to determine whether any interest of penalty is payable for past default. The management will be
able to identify and recognise such obligation, if any, based on claims received, SLDC vide their letter no SGM (PS)-PL-304/2012 (Part-
2)/3397 (8) dated 31.10.2018 has intimated the DPS of ¥ 160.17 crore due on the outstanding UI charges of  190.18 crores.

34.04 As per terms of vesting order all litigations pertaining to WESCO have been transferred to the Company in case of any unfavorable outcome
the Company will be able to recover the liability through Aggregate Revenue Requirement.

Note 35
Earnings per equity share (EPS)

Accounting policy

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the reporting period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period in accordance with Ind AS 33, "Earnings Per Share". Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the reparting period attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income {net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period as adjusted to the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except
where results are anti-dilutive.

The Company also presents Basic earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 114, "Regulatory Deferral Accounts” which is computed by
dividing the profit/(loss) for the reporting period before and after net movement in regulatory deferral account balance attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the the profit/(loss) for the reporting period before and after net movement in regulatory deferral account balance attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential eguity shares by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period as adjusted to the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

35.01 EPS - Continuing operations (excluding regulatory income/expense)

Particulars Units As At
a) Profit for the period Z Crore ‘ (1.02)
b) Net movement in requlatory deferral account balance ¥ Crore (73.04)
¢) Income-tax attributable to requlatory deferral account balance Z Crore :
d) Net movement in requlatory deferral account balance (net of tax} (b-c) ¥ Crore (73.04)
e) Profit for the period from continuing operations attributable to equity shareholders before ¥ Crore 72.02
net movement in regulatory deferral account balance .
f) Weighted average number of equity shares Nos in Crore 29.35
a) Basic and diluted earninas per eauitv share of Rs.10 each X 2.45
h} Face value of equity shares i 10.00

35.02 EPS - Continuing operations (including regulatory income/expense)

Particulars Units

a) Profit for the period from continuing operations after net movement in regulatory deferral 2 Crore
account balance attributable to equity shareholders.

b) Weiahted average number of equity shares Nos in Crore

c) Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of # 10 each
d) Face value of equity shares
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Note 36
Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship-where control exists
A. Holding company
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL}

B. Promoters holding together with its subsidiary more than 20% in holding company
Tata Sons Private Limited (Tata Sons)

C. Company exercising significant influence
GRIDCO Limited

D. Fellow Subsidiaries (with whom the company has transactions)
Coastal Gujarat Power Ltd (CGPL)
Industrial Energy Limited (IEL)
Maithon Power Limited (MPL)
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited (TPREL)
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSSL)
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL)
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL)

E. Joint Venture of Holding Company (with whom company has transactions)
Industrial Energy Limited (IEL)

F. Post retirement employee benefit trust
WESCO Employees Pension trust
WESCO Employees Gratuity trust
WESCO Employees Provident Fund trust
G. Key management personnel
Chief Executive Officer
Mr, Gajanan Sampatrao Kale

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Satish Kumar

Non-executive directors

Mr. Suresh Chandra Mahapatra
Mr. Nikunja Bihari Dhal

Dr. Praveer Sinha

Mr. Kesava Menon Chandrasekhar
Mr. Arup Ghaosh

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Banga

Mr. Nipun Aggarwal

Mr. Trilochan Panda

Related party transactions

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial

period:
a. Particulars of transactions with the related parties for the period ended 31.03.2021: ¥ crore
Sr ) Period Ended
No Name of Related Party Nature of transactions 31.03.2021
1 |Purchase of Power
GRIDCO Ltd Power purchase expenses net of rebate 642.96
Gratuity & Annual Leave
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 2.84
Coastal Gujarat Power Ltd (CGPL) Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 0.03
Industrial Energy Limited {IEL) Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 0.01
Maithon Power Limited (MPL) Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 0.71
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited {TPREL) Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 0.24
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPS5L) - Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 0.13
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL) Gratuity and Leave liability transferred 0.49
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd (TPDDL) Gratuity and Leave liabllity transferred 0.64
3 |Transaction with Trust
WESCO Employees Pension trust Contribution of Pension®* 30.43
LWVESCO Employees Gratuity trust Contribution of Gratuity* 2.42
WESCO Employees Provident Fund trust Contribution of Provident Fund 0.28
WESCO Employees Rehabilitation Fund trust Contribution of Rehabilitation Fund L
Managerial remuneration including directors' Managerial remuneration and sitting fees
4 |sitting fee 0.34
Total 681.52

*including amount collected from consumers for past Iiabliity (refer note 17.4




TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b. Particulars of Dutstanding Payable/ Receivable with the related parties as on 31.03.2021:

z; Name of the Entity Nature of transactions p: ;'g‘;g%dzid
1 [Share Capital
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Share capital 153.00
GRIDCO Limited Share capital 147.00
2 |Trade Payable
GRIDCO Limited Power Purchase Cost 247.99
3 |Other Receivable
The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 2.84
Coastal Gujarat Power Ltd (CGPL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.03
Industrial Energy Limited (IEL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.01
Maithon Power Limited (MPL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.71
Tata Power Renewable Energy Limited (TPREL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.24
Tata Power Solar Systems Limited (TPSSL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 013
TP Ajmer Distribution Limited (TPADL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.49
Tata Power Delhi Distribution Ltd {TPDDL) Gratuity & Annual Leave 0.64
Total 553.10
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Note 37

Financial Instruments : Accounting classifications, Fair value measurements, Financial Risk management and offsetting of financial
assets and liabilities

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items
that contain financial instruments,

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basls of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in the financial statements.

(i) Accounting classifications
The fair values of the financial assets and liabllities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Be HOE Lan Yy GIIUMILE Ui U GUE | SLEIVEUIES, LOBIH B1IU La31 SUUIVEISIIS, SHIUIL LOII USHUSILS, WEUE POYOUICS, PAYBUIES IUl SLYUISILIVIL Ul pIupSiLy,
plant and equipment, short term loans from banks, financial institutions and others are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature, Most financial assets and liabilities of the Company as at the balance sheet date are short term having fair value equal to amortised
cost.

b. For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

(ii) Fair Value measurements
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for fair valuation of assets and liability

March 31, 2021

: Classification Fair Value
Particulars C:rrrr ng Amortised
Aus FVTPL FVTOCI Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Trade receivables 66.19 - - 66.19 - = =
Unbilled Revenue 304,17 - - 304.17
Other financial assets 303.14 - = 303.14 = - =
Cash and cash equivalents 211.85 = - 211.85 - - -
Bank balances ot ii 811.81 & - 811.81 - - -
ank bal her than (i} above Tear 2 B T - = = 2
Financial Liabilities Carrying Classification ™~ Fair Value
yalue FVTPL FVTOCI Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Borrowings 141.26 - 141.26 = - =
Trade payables 290.64 = - 290.64 5 - =
Other financial liakilities 1,161.45 - - 1,161.45 - - -
1,593, = - 159335 B 5 -

(iii) Capital Management & Gearing Ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company. The Company's objectives for managing capital comprise safeguarding the business as a going concern, creating value for
stakeholders and supporting the development of the Company. In particular, the Company seeks to maintain an adequate capitalisation that enables it
to achieve a satisfactory return for shareholders and ensure access to external sources of financing, in part by maintaining an adequate rating.

The Company's capital structure consists of net debt and total equity. The Company includes within nat debt, interest bearing borrowings, less cash and
bank balances as detailed below. The position on reporting date is summarised in the following table:

As at
31.03.2021

¥ crore
Long-term borrowings
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Intefest accrued but not due on borrowings
Shaort-term borrowings 141.26
Total Debt (a) : 141.26
Less: Cash and bank balances (b) 211,85
Net debt {(c)=(a-b}} =
Total equity (d) 298.98
Total equity and ret debt {(e}=(c+d)} 298.98
Net debt to total equil lus net debt ratio (°6) {(f)=(c)/(e)} 0%

i. Debt is defined as Mon-current borrowings {including current maturities) and Current borrowings (excluding derivative, financial guarantee contracts
and contingent considerations) and interest accrued on Non-current and Current borrowings.

ii. Equity is defined as Equity share capital, Unsecured perpetual securities and other equity.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst cther things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been ‘no significant breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing
loans and borrowina in the current vear,

o
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(iv) Fi ial risk a nt objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, consumers' security deposit, lease liabilities, trade and other payables and other
financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Company’s princpal financial assets
include investments, loans, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks , unbilled revenue and other financial
assets that are derived directly from its operations.

The senior management of the Company oversees these risks and are managed in accordance with the Companies policies and risk objectives.

{v) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Company's income or value of it's holding of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. As at the reporting
date, the Compary does not have material financial assets of financial liabilities exposing it to market risk comprising foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and price risk.

(vi) Credit Ri

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and unbilled revenue) and other financial instruments.

Particulars As at
31.03.2021
¥ crore

(a) Trade receivables 66.19
(b) Unbilled revenue 304.17
(c) Other financial assets 32.30
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 211.85
(e) Bank balances other than above 811.81
Total 402.65

In case of trade receivables and unbilled revenue, senior management of the Company monitors overdue amount on regular basis and take appropriate
action, including forfeiture of security deposit and/ or disconnection of electricity, to get timely dues. Most of the cash and bank balances of the
Company are with scheduled commercial banks where risk of default is low.

risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, by cantinususly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. The
Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding.

The fallowing table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods, ignoring the call and
refinancing options available with the Company. The tables have besn drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. The amounts included below
far variable interest rate instruments for non-derlvative liabllities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates datermined at the and of the reporting period.

Particulars Upto 1 year 1toe5 5+ years Total
vears

As at 31 March, 2021

(a) Trade payables 290.54 - . 290.64
(b) Short term borrowings 141.26 - = 141.26
(c) Other financial liabilities 1,161.45 - = 1,161.45

1‘593.35 - = £93.35

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has cash and bank balances of Rs 1023.65 crores which can be used to meet its obligation. In case of
reguirement, the management is confident of ralsing further finance as required to meet its obligations. The Company has access to financing facilities
as described in note below. The Company expects to meet its obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

As at 31.03,2021

Financing facilities (short term ) Fund based MNon-fund Total
based
Secyred credit facilities, reviewed annually and pavable at call
Amount used and outstanding 141.26 - 141.26
Amount unused 217.74 - 217.74

Total 359.00 = 359.00
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Note 38
Business Combinations

38.01

38.03

S y of Busi Combination

The Company has been incorporated on December 30, 2020 under the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended). Pursuant to
vesting order issued by the OERC dated December 28, 2020, the Company acquired the business of distributing power in
Western Orissa (‘business”’) from WESCO with effect from January 1, 2021 (vesting date). Accordingly, the Company is a
licensee to carry out the function of distribution and retail supply of electricity covering the distribution circles of Rourkela,
Burla, Bhawanipatna, Bolangir and Bargargh in the state of Odisha for a period of 25 years effective from January 1, 2021,

The OERC in its vesting order has specified assets and liabilities of the WESCO to be transferred to the Company and
carrying values of these assets and liabilities are to be determined based on the audited financial statements of WESCO as
at and for the nine months period ended December 31, 2020. As per the terms of vesting order, the Company is entitled
to net assets having carrying amount of INR 300 crores and a fixed return on its investment of Rs. 300 crores. As per the
terms of the vesting order, the Company will be indemnified, in an appropriate manner, against any subsequently
identified surplus/ deficit in the vesting date carrying amount of assets and liabilities transferred to the Company.

The Company has accounted for this acquisition as a business combination in accordance with Ind AS 103 - 'Business
Combinations’. The acquisition date of business combination is 1 January 2021. Total purchase consideration for the
acquisition of this business from WESCO is ¥ 300 crores.

Particulars ¥ crore
Eauity Shares issued 300
Fair vaiue of net assets acauired (Refer 38.03 bejow} 300
Goodwill =

The company has issued 30,00,00,000 equity shares at a price of ¥ 10 each on conversion of trade payables toward the
purchase consideration.

The assets and liabilities recognized as a result of business combination are as follows :

WESCO management is in the process of completion of audited financial statements as at and for the nine months period
ended December 31, 2020 and Carve-out balance sheet of Business transferred as at January 1, 2021. Further, the
Company is in the process of identifying and determining fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on
acquisition of business from the WESCO. Pending audit of financial statements of WESCO as at and for the nine months
period ended December 31, 2020,completion of audited Carve-out balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, completion of
fair value exercise and other related aspects, the Company has allocated the purchase consideration on a provisional basis
considering the Vesting Order, unaudited financial information of WESCO as at and for the nine months period ended
December 31, 2020 and audited financial statements of WESCO as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020 on which
Independent Auditors of the WESCO issued a qualified opinion vide their audit report dated December 21, 2020.

The following table summarises the recognised provisional amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition:

Particulars ¥ crore
A. ASSETS
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,267.27
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 151.65
(c) Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets 168.80
(d} Other Non-current Assets 1.08
Total Non-current Assets 1,588.80
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 24.13
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 233.00
(i) Bank balances other than (iil} above 823.75
(iii) Other Financial Assets 39.28
(c) Other Current Assets 0.37
Total Current Assets 1,120.53
TOTAL ASSETS (A) 2,709.32
Particulars ¥ crore
B. LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities : P
(a) Consumer Contribution towards Capital Assets 882,88
(b) Other non-current liabilities 210.90
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,093.78
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 336.49
(iiy Trade Payables 21.75
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 950.15
(b) Other current liabilities 7.16
Total Current Liabilities 1,315.54
TOTAL LIABILITIES (B) 2,409.32
C Net Assets Acquired (A-B) 300.00
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38.04

38.05

38.06

Trade Receivables
No trade receivables have been transferred to the Company as part of business combination,

Additional explanations to Assets acquired and Liability Assumed

For the following assets and liabilities acquired from the WESCO, acquisition date records are incomplete/unavailable and
under reconciliation. Considering this and provisional fair valuation of assets and liabilities, it is possible that the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities recognised in the financial statement may undergo changes. Details of concerned assets
and liabilities at the acquisition date for which records are incomplete/unavailable are as below:

(a) Carrying amount of security deposits (classified under other financial liability-current in the Balance Sheet) as per the
general ledger is higher by ¥ 47.04 crores as compared to balance as per customer ledger.

(b} Carrying amount of consumer contribution towards capital assets as per the general ledger is Lower by ¥ 299.34 crores
as compared to balance as per customer ledger.
(c) Records related to location, ageing, scheme and items for Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) to the extent of 7 118.71
crores are unavailable,
(d} Physical verification of items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) were not carried out by the management of the
WESCO. Post-acquisition, the management has prepared a detailed plan to physically verify all items of PPE over the
period of next 12 to 18 months.
(e} Vendor/custemar dataile net availabl

(i)Security Deposit received from Vendors - ¥ 19.49 Crores (classified under other non-current liability in the Balance
Sheet)

(ii)Consumer deposit for service connection - # 818.81 Crores {classified under other financial liabilities- current in the
Balance Sheet)

(iii)Outstanding for Supply for Capital Material - ¥ 15.48 Crores (classified under other financial liabilities-current in the
Balance Sheet)

{iv} Advances to Staff = ¥ 7.11 Crores (ciassified under other Financiai Assets - non current assets in the Baiance
Sheet)

(v)Security Deposit given to various authorities - ¥ 0.78 Crores (classified under other non current assets in the
Balance Sheet)

(vi} Capital advances & Others - ¥ 1,48 Crores (classified under other non current assets in the Balance Sheet)
(f)Inventories were not physically verified by the management of the WESCO, Post-acquisition, the management has
physically verified significant portion of inventories. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification

la for the following itams:

{a) WESCO was not following any processes for identification of vendors as micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME)
under the MSMED Act,2006 . The Company Is in the process of identification of MSME vendors and ensuring necessary
compliance with the MSMED Act,2006.

{h) Fixed deposits with banks created out of Unutilized Government Grants amounting to Rs 188.02 crores as on
acqusition date is under reconcilations.

{i) Proper identification of items in the nature of inventory and Capital Work in Progress is in process.

The Company, with the WESCO management and the help/guidance of the OERC, is in the process of reconciling/ resolving
the above matters and adjustments, if any, will be recognized post reconciliation and resolution of the matters. As stated
above, the Vesting Order provides that any change in the value of assets and liabilities transferred on account of the
reconciliation / resolution of the above matters and/ or any other matter identified in future will be allowed to be
recovered by the Company in the manner specified in the vesting order. Hence, the Company believes that the
reconciliation/ resolution of the above matters will not have any impact on the financial position and financial perfarmance
af tha Tamnany ac raflartad in the finanrial ctatements

Acquisition Related Cost
There was no acquisition related cost incurred by the Company and accordingly, the same has not been recognised in the
financial statements.
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TP WESTERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 39

Disclosure regarding details of assets created with Government Fund and used by TPWODL

As per details provided by the Odisha Power Transmission Company Limited (OPTCL) , Certain assets were created for WESCO through different
schemes formed by the government and executed by OPTCL. Based on details shared by OPTCL, the carrying amount of such assets as of 31st
December, 2020 is Rs. 3,014.10 crores for completed assets and Rs. 430.81 crores for work in progress(WIP). These are subject to detailed
verification and reconciliation by various authorities.

As per the Vesting Order, the ownership of these assets has not been transferred to the Company; however, it can continue to use these assets
for supply of power to the consumer. Since the Company is not able to charge any depreciation for these assets in the ARR, the provisional fair
value of these assets for the Company at the vesting date is nil. Details are given below:

Name of Scheme Completed WIP Total
Odisha Distribution System Strengthening Project (ODSSP) 930.23 215.69 1,145.92
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 257.00 36.00 293.00
Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) 211.40 4,60 216.00
Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana — Saubhagya 168.29 - 168.29
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram lyati Ynjana (DDUGIY) 12TH 49670 - 494.70
PLAN (POWER GRID)

Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana (DDUGIY) 12TH 870.48 164.52 1,035.00
PLAN (NTPC)

Renovation long term action plan (RLTAP) 80.00 10.00 90.00
Total 3,014.10 430.81 3,444.91
Note 40

Statement of past arrears collection and utilisation of proceeds

As per the Vesting Order, trade receivables for pre-acquisition period are not transferred to the Company. However, the Company as a collection
agent needs to collect these receivables and use the same amount for paying obligations not transferred to the Company. The Company performs
these activities purely as an agent of WESCO. Based on information and records maintained, the Company has made below callections and
payments during the period ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars Prior to March 31, 2020 April to Dec 2020 Total
Gross Collection from consumers excluding electricity duty 104.55 300.14 404.69
Less : Incentive earned as per vesting order (10.81) - (10.81)
Add: Income Tax Refund Received pertain to previous period 7.00 7.00
Net Collection (A) 100.74 300.14 400.88
P to Power P nth of D mber 202

Bulk Supply Payment to GRIDCO Limited - 193.33 193.33
Transmission Charges payment to OPTCL - 13.98 13.98
SLDC Charges = 0.10 0.10
Total Payments (B) - 207.41 207.41
Net Receivable Payable) D = (B-A disclosed i

Nt B / (Payable) (B-A) as di St (100.74) (92.73) (193.47)
Notes:

(a) Considering the balances transferred to the Company from WESCO are provisional, there is a possibility that some of the payments made
during the year may pertain to liabilities transferred from WESCO. Adjustment in respect of the same shall be considered after completion of
finalisation of acquisition value of liabilities.

Note 41

Amount paid towards liabilities transferred on acquisition as on January 1, 2021

Secured Bank Overdraft 185.23
Salary for December 2020 10.64
Contractors / suppliers and other net liabilities 26.34

Total Payments 232.21




Note 42
Segment Reporting
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Note 43
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Note 44
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